#### SIGNATURE PAGE

Type or Print the following information.

	PF	ROSPECTIVE CONTRA	CTOR'S INI	FORMAT	TION		
Company:	Innovative Emergency Management, Inc.						
Address:	2801 Slater Road,	Suite 200					
City:	Morrisville State: NC Zip Code: 27560						27560
Business Designation:	<ul> <li>Individual</li> <li>Partnership</li> </ul>	□ Sole Pro Corpora	oprietorship tion				
Minority and Women-Owned	<ul> <li>Not Applicable</li> <li>African American</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>American Indian</li> <li>Hispanic American</li> </ul>			Service D Women-C	ce Disabled Veteran en-Owned	
Designation*:	AR Certification #:		* See Min	nority and	Women-O	wned Business	Policy

		CONTRACTOR CONTACT INF nation to be used for bid solicitation	
Contact Person:	Ryan Ausman	Title:	Manager of Contract Administration
Phone:	(919) 990-8191	Alternate Phone:	
Email:	contracts@iem.com		

#### CONFIRMATION OF REDACTED COPY

EYES, a redacted copy of submission documents is enclosed.

NO, a redacted copy of submission documents is <u>not</u> enclosed. I understand a full copy of non-redacted submission documents will be released if requested.

Note: If a redacted copy of the submission documents is not provided with Prospective Contractor's response packet, and neither box is checked, a copy of the non-redacted documents, with the exception of financial data (other than pricing), will be released in response to any request made under the Arkansas Freedom of Information Act (FOIA). See Bid Solicitation for additional information.

#### ILLEGAL IMMIGRANT CONFIRMATION

By signing and submitting a response to this *Bid Solicitation*, a Prospective Contractor agrees and certifies that they do not employ or contract with illegal immigrants. If selected, the Prospective Contractor certifies that they will not employ or contract with illegal immigrants during the aggregate term of a contract.

#### ISRAEL BOYCOTT RESTRICTION CONFIRMATION

By checking the box below, a Prospective Contractor agrees and certifies that they do not boycott Israel, and if selected, will not boycott Israel during the aggregate term of the contract.

Prospective Contractor does not and will not boycott Israel.

An official authorized to bind the Prospective Contractor to a resultant contract must sign below.

The signature below signifies agreement that any exception that conflicts with a Requirement of this *Bid Solicitation* will cause the Prospective Contractor's bid to be disqualified:

Authorized Signature:	- AC	Title: Manager of Contract Administration
	Use Ink Only	shelal
Printed/Typed Name:	Ryan Ausman	Date:

### SECTION 1, 2, 3 - VENDOR AGREEMENT AND COMPLIANCE

- Any requested exceptions to items in this section which are <u>NON-mandatory</u> must be declared below or as an attachment to this
  page. Vendor must clearly explain the requested exception, and should label the request to reference the specific solicitation item
  number to which the exception applies.
- Exceptions to Requirements shall cause the vendor's proposal to be disqualified.

By signature below, vendor agrees to and shall fully comply with all Requirements as shown in this section of the bid solicitation. Use Ink Only

Vendor Name:	Innovative Emergency Management, Inc.	Date:	3/19/2021
Authorized Signature:	ALC	Title:	Mgr. Contract Administration
Print/Type Name:	Ryan Ausman		

#### PROPOSED SUBCONTRACTORS FORM

• Do not include additional information relating to subcontractors on this form or as an attachment to this form.

#### PROSPECTIVE CONTRACTOR PROPOSES TO USE THE FOLLOWING SUBCONTRACTOR(S) TO PROVIDE SERVICES.

#### PROSPECTIVE CONTRACTOR DOES NOT PROPOSE TO USE SUBCONTRACTORS TO PERFORM SERVICES.

By signature below, vendor agrees to and **shall** fully comply with all Requirements related to subcontractors as shown in the bid solicitation.

Vendor Name:	Innovative Emergency Management, Inc.	Date:	3/19/2021
Authorized Signature:	20-	Title:	Mgr. Contract Administration
Print/Type Name:	Ryan Ausman		

Contract Number

Attachment Number

Action Number Failure to complete all of the follo	wing info					e agreement, or grant award with a		rv.
	ITRACTOR I					- <u>-</u>		2
	ive Eme	ergency	Management, Inc.				ervices? 🗹 Both	n? 🗌
YOUR LAST NAME:			FIRST NAME				M.I.:	
ADDRESS: 2801 Slater Roa	d, Suite	200						
CITY: Morrisville			STATE:	NC	ZIP COL	DE: 27560	COUNT	RY: USA
						A CONTRACT, LEASE, ING INFORMATION MUS		
			FOR	IND	IVII	DUALS*		
Indicate below if: you, your spou Member, or State Employee:	se or the	brother,	sister, parent, or child of you or you	ur spouse is	a current or	former: member of the General A	ssembly, Constitutional Of	fficer, State Board or Commis
Position Held	Mai	rk (√)	Name of Position of Job Held [senator, representative, name of	For Ho	w Long?		What is the person(s) name and how are they rel [i.e., Jane Q. Public, spouse, John Q. Public, Jr.	
1 CONTENT FOR	Current	Former	board/ commission, data entry, etc.]	From MM/YY	To MM/YY	Person's Name(s)		Relation
General Assembly								
Constitutional Officer								
State Board or Commission Member								
State Employee								
None of the above appl	ies							
			FOR AN E	NTI	гу (	BUSINESS) '	*	
Officer, State Board or Commissi	on Memb	er, State		, sister, pare	nt, or child		bly, Constitutional Officer,	State Board or Commission
Position Held	Ma	rk (√)	Name of Position of Job Held	For Ho	w Long?	? What is the person(s) name and what is his/her % of ownership interest a what is his/her position of control?		
Position Held	Current	Former	[senator, representative, name of board/commission, data entry, etc.]	From MM/YY	To MM/YY	Person's Name(s	Owr	nership Position of rest (%) Control
General Assembly								
Constitutional Officer								
State Board or Commission Member								

✓ None of the above applies

State Employee

Contract	Number	

Attachment Number

Action Number

Failure to make any disclosure required by Governor's Executive Order 98-04, or any violation of any rule, regulation, or policy adopted pursuant to that Order, shall be a material breach of the terms of this contract. Any contractor, whether an individual or entity, who fails to make the required disclosure or who violates any rule, regulation, or policy shall be subject to all legal remedies available to the agency.

#### As an additional condition of obtaining, extending, amending, or renewing a contract with a state agency I agree as follows:

- 1. Prior to entering into any agreement with any subcontractor, prior or subsequent to the contract date, I will require the subcontractor to complete a CONTRACT AND GRANT DISCLOSURE AND CERTIFICATION FORM. Subcontractor shall mean any person or entity with whom I enter an agreement whereby I assign or otherwise delegate to the person or entity, for consideration, all, or any part, of the performance required of me under the terms of my contract with the state agency.
- 2. I will include the following language as a part of any agreement with a subcontractor:

Failure to make any disclosure required by Governor's Executive Order 98-04, or any violation of any rule, regulation, or policy adopted pursuant to that Order, shall be a material breach of the terms of this subcontract. The party who fails to make the required disclosure or who violates any rule, regulation, or policy shall be subject to all legal remedies available to the contractor.

3. No later than ten (10) days after entering into any agreement with a subcontractor, whether prior or subsequent to the contract date, I will mail a copy of the CONTRACT AND GRANT DISCLOSURE AND CERTIFICATION FORM completed by the subcontractor and a statement containing the dollar amount of the subcontract to the state agency.

I certify under penalty of perjury, to the b that I agree to the subcontractor disclosu	est of my knowledge and belief, all of the above information is true and correct and reconditions stated herein.
Signature	Title Manager of Contract Administration Date March 19, 2021
Vendor Contact Person Ryan Ausman	Title_Manager of Contract AdministrationPhone No. (919) 990-8191
Agency use only Agency Agency Number 0710 Name Department of Human Services	Agency  Contact    Contact PersonPhone Noor Grant No



## Acknowledgement of Equal Employment Opportunity Policy

#### IEM Equal Employment Opportunity Policy

IEM provides equal employment opportunities to all employees and applicants for employment without regard to race, creed, color, religion, gender, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, age, disability, genetic information, marital status, citizenship status, status as a covered veteran, or other protected classification, in accordance with applicable laws. IEM expressly prohibits any form of unlawful discrimination based on race, creed, color, religion, gender, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, age, disability, genetic information, marital status, citizenship status, status as a covered veteran, or other protected classification.

IEM's policy of equal employment opportunity and anti-discrimination applies to all aspects of the relationship between IEM and its employees, including, but not limited to: employment, promotion, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; benefits; working conditions; and selection for training.

IEM will reasonably accommodate qualified individuals with a known disability so that they can perform the essential functions of a job, unless doing so causes a direct threat to these individuals or others in the workplace and the threat cannot be eliminated by reasonable accommodation and/or if the accommodation creates an undue hardship to IEM. Employees should contact Human Resources with any questions or requests for accommodation.

If an employee feels they have been the subject of discrimination or if they are aware of any violation of this policy, it should be reported to their supervisor or Human Resources. Employees may report violations of this policy without fear of reprisal. Any employee found to be engaging in any type of unlawful discrimination will be subject to disciplinary action.

I hereby acknowledge that I have read, understand, and agree to abide by the provisions of IEM's Equal Employment Opportunity Policy. A copy of this signed form will be retained in my employment records.

Employee Signature

Date

Employee Name (Printed)

1

#### 710-21-0035 Emergency Rental Assistance OFFICIAL BID PRICE SHEET

DESCRIPTION	Annual Cost for Initial Term	Percentage of ERA Funding
Management, oversight, and operation of a comprehensive turn-key Emergency Rental Assistance program	<sup>\$</sup> 7,693,533.00	4.43%

**Note:** Estimated Annual Cost should be expressed in percentage of ERA dispersed on behalf of the State and shall not exceed 6.5% of the total funding of \$173,684,765.50, or \$11.29 million. All expenses associated with the delivery and implementation of the proposed services must be included in the Vendor's Official Bid Price.

\*\*NOTE: All bid pricing must be in United States dollars and cents. Please provide a detailed budget as a separate attachment.

For additional details, please refer to the supporting Deliverable Table on the following page.

#### **AUTHORIZATION SIGNATURE**

By my signature below, I certify that the aforementioned statements are true and correct and that I accept the Terms and Conditions as presented in this bid, and that I am authorized by the respondent to submit this bid on his/her behalf.

Vendor Name:	Innovative Emergency Management, Inc.	Date:	March 18, 2021
Signature:	PocuSigned by: FYRM Husmin	Title:	Manager of Contract Administration
Printed Name:	Ryan Ausman		

#### 710-21-0035 EMERGENCY RENTAL ASSISTANCE PRICING DELIVERABLES TABLE

Program Specifications / Deliverables	Total
Call Center	\$ 3,128,960.00
Outreach	\$ 402,372.00
Processing System / Development & Maintenance	\$ 584,708.00
Case Management	\$ 3,577,493.00
Total	\$ 7,693,533.00





## **REDACTED COPY**

MARCH 19, 2021 A Proposal for the Arkansas Department of Human Services and the Department of County Operations

## EMERGENCY RENTAL ASSISTANCE (ERA) PROGRAM



## **Emergency Rental Assistance Program Administration Services**

## A Proposal for The State of Arkansas

Bid Number: 710-21-0035 March 19, 2021

Submitted by:



P.O. Box 110265 Research Triangle Park, NC 27709 (919) 990-8191 or (800) 977-8191 www.iem.com

### **Table of Contents**

1.0 EXPERIENCE AND QUALIFICATIONS
1.1 About IEM
1.2 Previous and Current Engagements
1.3 Acknowledgements
1.4 Organizational Chart9
1.5 Key STaff Biographies
2.0 CLIENT ASSISTANCE CAPABILITIES
2.1 Application Processing
2.2 Engagement of Non-English Speaking Populations21
3.0 TECHNOLOGICAL CAPABILITIES
3.1 Program Applicant Tracking and processing
3.2 System Security and Reliability
3.3 User Experience
3.4 User-facing features
4.0 COMMUNITY OUTREACH PLAN
5.0 PAYMENT PROCESSING AND DISTRIBUTION
6.0 DATA MANAGEMENT AND SECURITY
6.1 Eligibility, Verification, and Fraud Deterrence
6.2 Data Privacy and Security
6.3 Recovery Point Objective (RPO) and Recovery Time Objective (RTO)
7.0 AUDIT/RECORD RETENTION
8.0 IMPLEMENTATION PLAN
8.1 Program Initiation and Planning
8.2 Implementation Timeline

### 1.0 EXPERIENCE AND QUALIFICATIONS

IEM Quick Facts		
Company Headquarters	Innovative Emergency Management, Inc. 2801 Slater Road, Ste. 200 Morrisville, NC 27560	
Proposer Entity	Innovative Emergency Management (dba IEM) is responding to this solicitation as a single corporate entity, not as a partnership or joint venture, and will provide services as such.	
Foundation, Business Type, Ownership	<ul> <li>Founded by current President and CEO, Madhu Beriwal, in 1985.</li> <li>Largest woman-owned corporation of its kind.</li> <li>Dedicated emergency management and related services firm.</li> </ul>	
IEM Principal, Corporate Officers	<ul> <li>Madhu Beriwal, Owner, President, and Sole Director</li> <li>Ted Lemcke, Secretary</li> <li>Dan Michael, Treasurer</li> </ul>	
Person Authorized to Execute Contract	Ryan Ausman, Manager of Contract Administration. Tel: (919) 990-8191.	
Financial Health and Stability	IEM is fiscally solvent, viable, and has continually operated without interruption for its 36-year history, with continued growth and expansion of services.	
IEM Service Areas	Disaster preparedness, response, and recovery, homeland defense, counter terrorism, biothreats, public health, cybersecurity, public agency performance, transportation & air operations, and emergency relief services related to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic as provided through the CARES Act and Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2021.	
Client Facts	400+ clients at the national, state, and local level in 15 countries and 53 US states & territories, with 74% repeat business.	
Employees	Ark. Code Ann. § 25-19-101 et seq.	
US Offices	11 full-service offices (including HQ) and 19 satellite offices providing coast-to-coast services.	

#### **1.1 ABOUT IEM**

Throughout our 36-year history, IEM has remained dedicated to its charge to create a "Safe, Secure, Resilient World". IEM has maintained its current structure, a testament to stability and support for our clients and disaster survivors. While IEM's management structure remains unchanged, the firm is evolving to embrace the growth necessary to meet client needs

Headquartered in Morrisville, North Carolina, IEM has been at the forefront of supporting the nation's most significant public health, emergency management, homeland security, and disaster preparedness, mitigation, and recovery efforts. Having managed billions of dollars in federal funding following six of the nation's worst natural disasters - Hurricane Katrina in Mississippi, Superstorm Sandy in New York and New Jersey, Flooding in Louisiana, and Hurricanes Maria, Irma, and Harvey - IEM has served as a trusted, national resource for recovery solutions.

1

In the wake of the COVID-19 pandemic, IEM deployed technical and program management resources immediately to assist federal, state and county agencies respond to the economic impact of this new reality – including management of the Small Business Administration's Economic Injury Disaster Loan (EIDL) program.

IEM is a national leader in policy, planning, and program administration, and has supported federal, state, and local government clients - as well as the private sector and international concerns in conceptualizing, building, and executing their missions to build a Safe, Secure, Resilient future. These include all 50 U.S. states, three territories, and major urban areas across the country, including Atlanta, Baltimore, Baton Rouge, Boston, Chicago, Dallas, Houston, Jacksonville, Los Angeles, Miami, New Orleans, New York City, Orlando, Raleigh, San Francisco, San Juan, Tallahassee, and Washington, D.C.

#### **1.2 PREVIOUS AND CURRENT ENGAGEMENTS**

IEM offers Arkansas DHS/DCO access to a team of well-trained management professionals, spearheaded by project leadership dedicated to speed, technical excellence, transparency, compliance, accountability, and results. IEM's mission when serving the public, through support of our public agencies, is to stand up operations immediately and deliver grant funding compliantly with blazing speed. This is the best form of customer service we can provide—delivery of vital resources in the most efficient manner possible.

IEM's expert staff members have been assisting homeowner and renter populations since 2005 – including the administration and management of multi-scale CDBG-DR housing deliveries in New York, New Jersey, Louisiana, Texas, North Carolina, Florida, and Puerto Rico. Similar to COVID-19 Emergency Rental Assistance and Eviction Prevention Programs, Small Rental Housing programs across the country have been designed to prevent the potential for homelessness among tenant populations.

Examples of income-based and other housing programs for which IEM has provided intake, eligibility, income, and benefit verification and disbursements services for homeowners and/or renters include:

- Restore Louisiana Great Floods of 2016 Housing Recovery. This program was the fastest large-scale housing recovery in US history including 40,000 homes from nearly all corners of the State of Louisiana. A total of 27, 255 awards and 21,835 disbursements were made throughout IEM's tenure. IEM provided outreach, intake, application completion, application and eligibility review, income certification, award calculation and notification, and disbursement. Additionally, Temporary Housing Assistance, Relocation, and Reimbursement Programs were included components of this delivery. Projects further required identification of tenants, tenant needs and qualifying benefits, and prevention of homelessness through compliance with URA requirements.
- Texas GLO Homeowner Assistance Program (HAP) Hurricane Harvey. IEM was selected to manage Texas' largest post-disaster housing-focused recovery program in the State's history, which involved a challenging effort to identify, locate, and successfully reach out to the program's most vulnerable and hardest to reach populations. Within the first 90 days, IEM had arranged more than 53 grassroots public outreach events, mailed program information to more than 18,000 households, arranged the distribution of information in utility bill inserts for 462,500 households, engaged over 430 nonprofit groups and partners, and placed paid advertising in more than 11 local media outlets. The success of the program was described by the Texas GLO as "Extraordinary."
- Rebuild Florida Hurricane Irma Housing Recovery. IEM is currently providing comprehensive design and implementation services for Florida's \$1.3B Hurricane Irma Disaster Recovery program – including design of policy-compliant program management services that include income verification and assistance for homeowners and tenants. In 30 days, IEM stood up nine geographically- dispersed intake centers. As part of this delivery, IEM has provided outreach, intake, application completion, application and eligibility

review, income qualification, award calculation and notification, and disbursement coordination with State financial services. This program also features Temporary Housing Assistance, Temporary and Permanent Relocation, Small Rental, and Multifamily Housing Assistance Programs. Projects further required identification of tenants, tenant needs and qualifying benefits, and prevention of homelessness through compliance with temporary rental assistance guidelines or URA requirements, as applicable.

 New Jersey Rehabilitation, Reconstruction, Elevation, & Mitigation (RREM) Program – Superstorm Sandy. IEM was contracted by New Jersey's Department of Community Affairs (DCA) to assist completing the housing recovery phase in the aftermath of Superstorm Sandy – including a pathway for verifying program eligibility for home improvement, elevation, or construction projects eligible to LMI homeowners only.

#### **1.3 ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS**

#### ATTACHMENTS D & E

IEM has reviewed the included professional services contract (Attachment D) and pro forma contract (Attachment E), and relates that we take no exceptions to the content, terms, or conditions of these documents.

#### ATTACHMENT F

IEM agrees to the professional service standards as presented in Attachment F, "Organizational or Personal Conflict of Interest".

#### RESTORE LOUISIANA HOUSING RECOVERY PROGRAM MANAGEMENT Louisiana Office of Community Development



Period of Performance April 2017 – April 2020 Program Value \$1.8 Billion Relevant Tasks Program Management Case Management Case Management Data Management Reward Eligibility Fund Disbursement Application Portal CDBG-DR Reference Jon Bel Edwards, Governor

rk. Code Ann. § 25-19-101 et s

IEM is running the fastest, most cost-efficient CDBG-DR recovery currently in operations - Restore Louisiana, for recovery from the Great Floods of 2016. This program covers program, case, and construction management for long term housing recovery for almost 40,000 homes in 51 of Louisiana's 64 parishes.

Until Hurricane Harvey, Louisiana's (LA) 2016 floods were widely considered the most destructive incidents to strike the U.S. since Hurricanes Katrina and Sandy. The "1,000-year" floods came from storms that dumped four times as much water on the state as Hurricane Katrina had.

Since April 2017, IEM provided the full lifecycle of program operations, from intake and eligibility determination through closeout. IEM's scope included program design and implementation led through the establishment of IEM's Program Management Office.

IEM's program management activities were accomplished with seamless coordination of a team of more than a dozen direct subcontractors, each working their area of specialty. In 10 months, from scratch start of the Restore program, we completed eligibility and award determinations on 45 percent of the active Program population. No housing assistance program in US history has ever moved that quickly. IEM achieved this with a strong team, extremely rapid focused startup activity, data driven goals, and measurement for key production milestones.

IEM has established performance metrics and monitored them at the employee and team levels. In the time since the contract was executed, IEM's team accomplishments include:

• Four offices established with 300+ employees on boarded in less than four weeks

• Construction initiated within 50 days of LA receiving the 1st tranche of federal funds

• Obligated \$657,159,000 in federal funds. Disbursed \$\$578,711,00 across five different Program Solutions, with only 371 complaints from a total of 51,895 participants

**Case Management:** As part of our leadership for the Restore Louisiana program, IEM managed a team of case managers who are responsible for all aspects of the application process, which includes application intake, verification for homeowner rehabilitation and buyout programs, and processing for financial assistance. They review the CDBG-DR grant application to make certain that all HUD, state and local requirements are met.

Prior to the submission of the CDBG-DR grant application for approval, case managers review the application and make the final determination on duplication of benefits (DOB). Our case managers develop and generate weekly, monthly, and quarterly reports on all activates performed of CDBG-DR funding, and coordinate with the sub-

recipients on the process. They work with other staff in tracking applications from the initial phase through work write-ups, bid process, and Notice to Proceed. Case Managers review each project file prior to close-out, and coordinate with sub-recipients regarding issues with applications and provide proper guidance for approval.

#### Completed Intake and Eligibility:

- 95% complete intake
- 80% case management/intake
- 70% eligibility determinations

**Data Management:** IEM developed Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for each of the program lanes: damage assessment, lead testing, eligibility, environmental testing, awards, construction, etc. IEM also developed sophisticated data analytics-driven production metrics for State monitoring, as well as Performance Measures reported to external stakeholders. These measures are reported to the Governor and to the Flood Recovery Task Force, as well as funding agencies to monitor progress.

Building on the existing STR's eGrants software, IEM implemented Home Recovery IQ (HRIQ) – an agile, no codelow code platform for efficient workflow management and speedy recovery. HRIQ is based on technology rated by Gartner as "Magic Quadrant" for intelligent business process management.

#### Major early milestones:

- Fastest CDBG-DR program for housing recovery in US history
- Rapid start Four service centers and a Call Center established, with more than 300 employees onboarded (in less than four weeks)
- Checks given to homeowners in the first month after contract signature
- Construction initiated on the 1st home within 40 days of contract signature
- Assisted STR eGrants personnel with program requirements to meet CDBG compliance
- Designed HRIQ to increase efficiency and speed of workflows for faster recovery using low code, no code platform rated by Gartner as in the Magic Quadrant for intelligent business process management
- KPIs, production metrics, performance measures to drive CDBG-DR recovery results

**Disbursement:** IEM obligated \$657,159,000 in federal funds. Disbursed \$578,711,000 across five different Program Solutions, with only 371 complaints from a total of 51,895 participants.

#### TEXAS GENERAL LAND OFFICE HOMEOWNERS ASSISTANCE PROGRAM Texas General Land Office



Period of Performance May 2017 – Present Program Value \$1.048B Relevant Tasks Case Management Call Center Application Portal CDBG-DR Program Outreach Rehabilitation & Reconstruction <u>Reference</u> Heather Lagrone, Senior Deputy Director Ark. Code Ann. § 25-19-101 et set For Texas' largest post-disaster recovery program in its history, IEM was selected to perform the hard job – identify, locate and successfully reach out to the program's 13 counties with the most vulnerable and difficult to reach populations. Texas GLO called the result "Extraordinary."

IEM serves as Program Manager for the Texas General Land Office's Homeowners Assistance Program, providing services to survivors of Hurricane Harvey across 13 counties. The post-Harvey housing recovery effort is the largest post-disaster program ever undertaken by the State of Texas and IEM was tasked with supporting the recovery of a wide array of demographics and communities in two regions – from densely populated suburban areas around the Houston metropolitan area to extremely rural areas bordering the State of Louisiana. As part of program delivery, the General Land Office faced the unique challenge of reaching out to widely dispersed vulnerable and special populations. These populations include residents with limited English proficiency, veterans, people with disabilities, families with children under 18, elderly residents and low to moderate income survivors. IEM met the challenge by designing a Needs Assessment and a highly targeted affirmative marketing and public outreach plan.

To develop a truly comprehensive Needs Assessment, IEM combined a wide array of data from the Small Business Administration, FEMA, the U.S. Census, the National Flood Insurance Program, and consulted with a wide range of local and regional non-profit organizations. IEM used this data to develop maps in which recipients were prioritized down to the individual street level.

This Needs Assessment was then used to guide IEM's development of its marketing and public outreach plan. The plan micro targeted the most vulnerable and in-need populations in each of the 13 counties. It included tools and tactics for reaching each category of most in-need individuals through the best mix of newspaper ads, TV and radio ads, social media, billboards, direct mail, text messages, and grassroots events like town hall and community meetings, and applications fairs using mobile intake centers. We shared all this information with our non-profit organization partners including the Red Cross, a variety of VOADs, emergency management agencies, faith leaders, and elected officials. IEM created a

web-based toolkit of communications products for these partners to download and use to attract new applicants.

These efforts occurred in tandem with IEM setting up the program infrastructure. This included opening three major Housing Assistance Centers in the program's most densely populated areas plus 11 mobile intake centers to reach all corners of all 13 counties. Through the efforts of IEM's staff of 30, we quickly began processing over 1,500 applicants within weeks after launch.

#### Rebuild Florida CDBG-DR Program Management

Florida Department of Economic Opportunity



Period of Performance July 2018-Present Program Value \$1.3 Billion Relevant Task Case Management Call Center Application Portal CDBG-DR Program Management Reference Ryan Butler, Disaster Recovery Manager, Florida Department

of Economic Opportunity Ark. Code Ann. § 25-19-101 et sec IEM proposed a new methodology not previously utilized by grantees, but that would resolve general equitability challenges that have faced grantees in the past.

IEM is providing comprehensive program design and implementation services for Florida's \$1.3 billion-dollar disaster recovery program for recovery from Hurricane Irma. IEM staff provide program management tasks that include the design of housing, economic development, and infrastructure programs compliant with HUD and other federal, state, and local cross-cutting rules, regulations, and guidance. The program will result in the rehabilitation, replacement or reconstruction of 7,000+ housing units, the new construction of multifamily residential structures, acquisition and buyout of properties in high hazard or repetitive loss areas, business grants for replacement of equipment and inventory, business mentorship grants and job training opportunities. IEM also provides program design, compliance, and monitoring for subrecipient projects.

IEM staff provide program and project management support the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity across each program area. Services include policy and procedure development, training, outreach/marketing, application development, eligibility determination, Stafford Act compliance, damage assessment, environmental review, grant agreement execution, construction oversight, website and public communication content support, reporting, compliance, monitoring, subrecipient management, technical assistance, and grant closeout.

The Action Plan for Irma required a feasibility study to compare the cost of repair to the cost of a "comparable replacement home", yet this term was undefined. IEM provided the client with several options for determining the value for the feasibility equation. Among the choices, IEM proposed a new methodology not previously utilized by grantees, but that would resolve general equitability challenges that have faced grantees in the past. IEM outlined the risks and benefits for each, and the client selected the new

innovative approach proposed by IEM.

This recommendation has a threefold benefit:

- Fair and consistent application of program policy
- Resolution of traditional Fair Housing challenges
- Efficiency in process, reducing cost and time to completion

This will result in fewer legal challenges in program benefit determination and more solid legal defense position for any challenges that do arise. The increased processing speed of applications reduces the overall time necessary to qualify an applicant for a benefit, allowing the program to move into the construction phase without the 30-day or more delay other methodologies would require.

7

Rehabilitation, Reconstruction, Elevation, and Mitigation (RREM) Program New Jersey Department of Community Affairs (DCA), Sandy Recovery Division (SRD)



Period of Performance	_
October 2017-Present	
Program Value	-
\$600 Million	
Relevant Tasks	_
Case Management	
CDBG-DR	
Eligibility Reviewing	
Reference	
Samuel Viavattine, Director, I	New
Jersey Department of Community Affairs	

IEM assumed responsibility for homeowner cases whose home rehabilitation was still lingering several years after Superstorm Sandy. IEM's deep policy understanding, rigorous analytics, and creative approaches are now enabling these cases to move to completion.

IEM was contracted by DCA to assist in completing the housing recovery phase in the aftermath of Superstorm Sandy, providing project management services for Pathway B Applicants. Pathway B consists of Applicants who have identified and selected their own program eligible, State-approved builder to complete home improvement, elevation, or construction projects under RREM and LMI Homeowners Rebuilding Programs. This program is funded using CDBG-DR dollars.

IEM provides support to complete repair construction for the most difficult and delayed applicant projects, successfully closing them out in the Program. IEM accomplishes this goal by providing professional advisory services to homeowners, so they understand the construction process and expectations, roles, and responsibilities of all parties throughout construction, and next steps needed to move forward. Additionally, IEM has provided services and interventions to help homeowners manage their builder relationship, and navigate local permitting, zoning, and building code requirements.

Construction services include conducting necessary inspections, evaluations, assessment, scope development, cost estimating, environmental compliance, building code compliance, and flood risk mitigation through elevation of homes or reconstruction of homes to flood zone compliance.

IEM developed project-specific Workflow Plans that assisted in the

management of construction projects. These Workflow Plans assessed financial health of the project, monitored construction status and progress, and detailed the documentation required for closeout. The NJ-RREM engagement is very much solutions-driven. IEM was tasked with identifying issues and problems plaguing thousands of homeowner applications, and then developed targeted solutions to resolve those problems.

**Dynamic Problem-Solving:** The Client experienced major issues with homeowners unable to close out. The major impediment was construction stalled while in progress, typically cases where the builder was terminated from the project or otherwise not involved in the project any longer and the homeowner had outstanding construction items preventing the property from receiving a certificate of occupancy from local government. To fix this problem, IEM recommended a partnership with 2-3 General Contractors that would be assigned projects as these situations arose, so that IEM could quickly intervene, complete necessary work, obtain sign-off, and move projects towards closeout. This approach provides a significant cost reduction for these homeowner projects that were previously stalled and "costing delivery funds just sitting there," while also ensuring cost-reasonableness and timely completion of work.

#### **1.4 ORGANIZATIONAL CHART**

IEM brings talented professionals to Arkansas DHS/DCO with experience in Emergency Rental Assistance Administration and Disbursement. Our team offers highly qualified staff that can help advance the Arkansas's efforts to deliver services to affected citizens and communities. Based on the scope provided in the solicitation, the IEM Team has designed a staffing solution that we believe best fits Arkansas DHS/DCO's needs. This project's organization is mission-focused and avoids extraneous positions that create unnecessary costs and administrative burdens.

IEM carefully selects our project management and supporting staff to ensure we have the right mix of education, training and certification, and practical on the ground experience to provide depth of technical expertise and the ability to deliver well managed project activities for Arkansas's COVID-19 relief programs within time and budget. Our staff has a wealth of experience with large (>\$1 billion) state grantee programs funded by FEMA, HUD, SBA, and other federal sources.

IEM's assigned project manager (PM) will head the project team and will be the primary interface with Arkansas DHS/DCO. The PM will directly supervise all key and supervisory staff on the project. The PM will be the single responsible IEM manager for Arkansas DHS/DCO to provide a single point of accountability. The PM will have full authority to make project decisions and to address project or client issues. Figure 1 below shows the key staff by name in the critical managerial and supervisory positions over their respective teams.



Figure 1: IEM's Project Organization with clear lines of authority to maximize speed and efficiency.

All of IEM's proposed management personnel, including our Program Manager, are seasoned IEM full time employees. Our rationale is that this provides the best continuity, speed, and ability to hit the ground running—critical for a rapid launch, high output program like ERAP. The collective experience and critical knowledge of our proposed management team will be invaluable for delivering a fast paced, high volume grant program such as this, in addition to securing early wins and overall program success for the State. Most of all, we're fully confident in this team's ability to positively impact the lives of program participants in need of emergency assistance.

9

#### IEM WILL FOCUS ON LOCAL STAFFING

As an emergency management firm founded in Baton Rouge and headquartered in North Carolina, IEM has both a national reach and a long history of serving states and local agencies throughout the South and Southeastern United States. As such we are ideally equipped to implement a staffing strategy that will prioritize local employment opportunities in Arkansas, while having the ability to increase staff resources wherever and whenever needed to keep the program moving.

Customer Service Representatives, Case Managers, Call Center and Case Management Supervisors will all be staffed locally in Arkansas. IEM has an existing relationship with Aerotek, Inc., a high-volume staffing vendor with operations in Little Rock. Aerotek has direct experience with rapid staffing of call center and case management centric projects at or exceeding the scale of the State's program. In addition, they have actual experience staffing for local emergency rental assistance programs for the first CARES Act allocation. With demonstrated ability to staff effective, multi-lingual call center and case management agents at numbers exceeding 500 personnel in 1-2 weeks, IEM has high confidence that this vendor will deliver staff against the timeline in our project schedule.

IEM has standing relationships with a number of other national staffing firms. We have effectively used these firms in the past to source call center agents, case managers, QC reviewers and financial/accounting staff for multiple active grant management projects. IEM uses these additional relationships to augment staffing capacity at project startup and beyond so there is not a single point of failure with respect to staffing. Use of staffing firms maximizes our ability to use local employees - citizens of Arkansas, thereby allowing IEM, and the State to "give back what was given" with respect to gainful employment and skills development for Arkansans. This model served IEM well with successful grant program management deliveries in six states or territories, as our resume in grants management continues to grow.

IEM's experience in delivering program success in similar disaster and public health-related initiatives underscores the necessity of developing local resources who understand the impacted communities first-hand and, most importantly, are empathetic to the individuals and families whose housing is at-risk. Our staffing structure for this program involves a single Program Director that will be dedicated to this project for the full-term of the engagement. The Program Director will be fully authorized to access whatever corporate resources, including staffing, equipment, or information technology, necessary to support the success of the project and provide additional wins for Arkansas and its residents.

The IEM team provides access to a deep bench of specialists and experts on all aspects of 2 CFR 200 guidance, programs, policies, and regulations related to disaster and pandemic management, response, and recovery. IEM has provided detailed information about the experience and qualifications of our Key Personnel below.

#### 1.5 KEY STAFF BIOGRAPHIES

## Ark. Code Ann. § 25-19-101 et seg.





Ark. Code Ann. § 25-19-101 et seq.

11



#### ADDITIONAL STAFF

In addition to our well-rounded compliment of grant management professionals, IEM commits to hiring Arkansas residents to fill job openings. Our projects are opportunities to provide high-quality jobs in the local market and boost local economies. In the current environment, this is critical support desperately needed – especially for those who are unemployed because of the COVID-19 pandemic. IEM firmly commits to Arkansas DHS/DCO that our staffing selection process will prioritize local residents and Section 3 hires, for new job opportunities that arise from this project.

Our Customer Service and Case Management staff be mobilized with the capacity to increase based on intake volume. These critical program staff will assist with income and benefit verification and be the frontline and face of the program. Case managers will further work with program applicants to explain program rules and options, assists with application completion and document verification, and provide considerable, timely, and ongoing

follow-up to each applicant with respect to case status, timelines, and other expectations. This group will review applications for completeness prior to submitting to eligibility review and will remain each applicant's singular point of contact for the applicant's time in the program.

This team will be led by strong Case Management Leads with proven experience serving applicants seeking housing recovery, rental, or interim mortgage assistance. These featured staff will provide the backbone of our Emergency Rental Assistance program support team, ensuring that all work is completed with Arkansas DHS/DCO's outcomes in mind and in compliance with agreed upon SOPs, performance standards, as well as local, state, and federal regulations.

Our customer service and case management team will be supported by back-office specialists assisting with eligibility and program disbursement quality control reviews. This team is comprised of experienced eligibility reviewers and funding QC specialists. Rounding out our team, additional program support will be provided for Financial Management and Accounting, Information Technology, and Reporting.

### 2.0 CLIENT ASSISTANCE CAPABILITIES

#### 2.1 APPLICATION PROCESSING

#### APPLICANT PROCESSING

Applicant Relations and Case Management Services: Providing excellent customer service to our applicant population, setting program expectations, and providing issue resolution services to our program constituents will set the positive tone necessary to facilitate successful delivery of Arkansas's Emergency Rental Assistance Program.

We want every pandemic-impacted person to have an opportunity to apply for program assistance. Our outreach program will educate the public on the rental assistance program and drive individuals to complete the application process electronically or on paper. Intake will be the first tangible contact that an applicant has with the recovery program and it is imperative that applicants are provided accurate information in a competent, friendly, customer-service oriented manner. In-person application intake for those who cannot or do not want to use telephone, internet, or email services will be readily available. Our Applicant Relations and Case Management planning efforts for COVID-19 are based on research and integration of best practices, guidelines and response strategies targeted at the specific needs of customers and stakeholders.

We recognize that the communities impacted throughout Arkansas are diverse and include some of the most impacted and distressed rural areas of the state. Applicants from different demographic groups and backgrounds who may have varying comfort levels with technology, and varying access to transportation must all be reached and accommodated. Having delivered services to diverse stakeholder populations for other federal disaster recovery grantees provides the IEM team with well-rounded experience in providing multiple streams of application intake and applicant communication protocols. We will make sure every potential applicant is being supported.

As with all our program materials, accessibility will be a high priority. We understand the State's published Language Access Plan and will offer vital program information, materials, and services in English and Spanish. Our online materials will all comply with Section 508 requirements, so they are accessible to the visually impaired. And we will support the accessibility needs for persons with physical disabilities and will provide a method, either in-person or via phone, to reach multilingual support.

All of these methods, when combined with our outreach program, will form a comprehensive web of services to rapidly support applicant intake into the program, creating an early public success while setting the program on a sound footing for rapidly delivering noticeable results.

Application Process and Document Intake Operations: The IEM team will employ a multi-faceted approach to extending coverage to residents across Arkansas. Case managers will work with program applicants and their housing providers to explain program rules and options, assist with application completion, document eligibility and benefit verification, and provide considerable, timely, and ongoing follow-up to each applicant with respect to case status, timelines, and other expectations.

# Ark. Code Ann. § 25-19-101 et seq.

IEM will work directly with applicants to ensure the conditions outlined in the Consolidated Appropriations Act are met and documented in the system of record – including:

- 1. Obtaining Tenant Signatures for the Application.
- 2. Providing Documentation of Application to the Tenant.
- 3. Using Payments Received to Satisfy Tenant Rental Obligations.
- 4. Compliance with All Other Program Regulations.

Particularly in light of the novel coronavirus and the impediments to traditional intake caused by the ongoing pandemic, IEM will integrate online teleconferencing services to support intake operations through grant closing to the maximum extent feasible. This option will be available to residents attending on-site meetings, or who have opted to complete and continue their program enrollment from home.

IEM also proposes the use of other non-traditional, value-added customer service features available to residents within the application completion and intake coordination processes – such as mobile outreach events, home visits, and curbside pickups – that maximizes residents' involvement and brings the program to homeowners who are in most urgent need of these services. For residents who are elderly, disabled, infirmed, immobile, or otherwise require special accommodations, the IEM team offers home visits and curbside pickups of required documentation to ensure the maximum speed of service to residents most in need. In working with assigned residents, case managers will schedule home visits to applicants to complete applications or receive required documentation to complete their program enrollment. Assigned case managers will coordinate the pick-up of needed or outstanding documentation from applicants – prioritizing those who are immobile, infirmed, disabled, or in need of immediate, emergency assistance. The assigned case manager will provide an exhaustive list of outstanding documents. When an applicant is ready to provide those documents via curbside pickup, a dedicated team of outbound outreach specialists will interface with applicants to coordinate receipt of those documents through scheduled pickup dates and times.

Applicants who have responded to application questions that indicate potential ineligibility for assistance will be triaged and handled by a strike team solely dedicated to the ineligible review for these applicants. This allows our case management team to focus our prospective eligible and priority populations fast and early upon renter/landlord application completion, while providing targeted support in order to assist more complex cases.

After completing applications and conducting interviews, the case management team will then review applications for eligibility and completeness and will serve as a singular point of contact for residents throughout the duration of the program. To fully support Applicant Relations from the start of program throughout, IEM proposes to use a combination of strategies and tactics that will ensure the highest levels of customer engagement and satisfaction.

**Table 1: Applicant Relations Strategies and Tactics** 



#### CALL CENTER SUPPORT

#### **Adequately Staffed**

IEM provides Customer Service Representatives (CSR) and CSR Supervisors, including multilingual individuals, trained in program policies and procedures, to work the Call Center mission. We will size the final Call Center work staff based on demand, in coordination with Arkansas DHS/DCO. These personnel support landlord and tenant applicants with a wide range of requests from registering and applying to the ERAP to application status and general program information.

Our Call Center Manager, Personnel and our Manager, Case Management, supported by our Compliance Manager, will have primary responsibility for training the onboarding Call Center supervisors to a rigorous standard so that the Supervisors can subsequently train their assigned CSRs. IEM prepares Arkansas DHS/DCO approved scripts and other desktop aids for CSRs to supplement and reinforce training. As ERAP policies change and operational observations dictate, the management chain will address changes through the same "train the trainer" process. CSR Supervisors will be accountable for their assigned CSRs meeting all standards and will measure CSR performance via defined Key Performance Indicators (KPI). Reports generated by IEM's contact center solution and call sampling, with approval by Arkansas DHS/DCO will support the CSR and CSR Supervisor performance assessments. CSR Supervisors are responsible for placing lower performing CSRs on an improvement plan and replace a CSR that cannot demonstrate improved performance in a short period of time. The Customer Service Manager, Personnel will hold CSR Supervisors to the same standards using the same methods to evaluate.

IEM continually adapts our pool of training materials and job aids to evolving conditions. In the case of a significant applicant call surge where a substantial number of additional CSR staff is brought in, IEM applies a "right seat" procedure to match new staff with high performing current staff to maximize rapid training penetration and allow real time checks on performance to standard. IEM develops modified procedures and develops new material and desktop guides or other artifacts quickly and incorporates them into both the training activities and Call Center operations.

#### **Data Retention & Reporting**

Call and Contact Center operations have been an integral part of IEM's grant program management contracts for over four years. We deliver call center services as an important part of contract scope and deliver flexibly based on client needs or desires. IEM can fully integrate our call center staff with a required third party software solution and we have our own leading edge cloud-based Software as a Service (SaaS) solution that we immediately apply to project call center requirements. In the case of the Arkansas ERAP, IEM will supply our contact center solution to enable our call center staff to meet all associated requirements in the RFP.

IEM will report on contact rates within the appropriate SLA of answer time and ABA (Abandon Rate), and other KPI, while focusing on call resolution. IEM's contact center software is SOC2 Type 2 certified and has externally validated support for security regulations and standards including HIPAA, FISMA / NIST, HITRUST, etc. Calls are recorded with random monitoring to maintain quality control, while adhering to strict guidelines for Customer Support Metrics and Standards. Post call surveys are utilized to measure agent performance and identify strengths and weaknesses. IEM agents are trained and retrained based on call experiences through Proactive Quality Assurance Protocols. IEM achieves a 99.9 percent uptime with full redundancy and continuity across all platforms. Reporting will be sent out daily, weekly, and monthly all on call and email activities.

#### CALL CENTER AND CASE MANAGEMENT EXPERTISE

IEM is experienced in managing call center operations for large scale, disaster related projects. In Florida, IEM was ready to launch operations across nine geographically distant locations, with full call center and deployable registration system, within 7 days of DEO's blessing to open the program. (See additional statistics below.) In North Carolina, we set up operations **within just seven days**. These timelines include the time to set up toll free numbers, Call Centers, as well as brick and mortar and online registration / Intake centers. We believe that at its heart, effective case management moves eligible applicants rapidly to construction phase and program completion. IEM's case management services are provided by our people, and our people are supported by our systems. With IEM's people, resources, and systems, IEM will provide a comprehensive case management service group to assist each tenant and rental property owner.



Figure 2: Call center statistics for FL DEO Hurricane Irma CDBG-DR project.

#### TRAINING PLAN

Call centers for HUD-funded programs operate in a climate of high speed and complexity, mandating both a clear and measurable understanding of current program policies and procedures and overall applicant and stakeholder experience management. New tools and techniques, along with policy and process enhancements, are often necessary in order to successfully achieve business, production, and quality requirements. IEM's training program for the Arkansas ERAP call center Team will cover (but is not limited to): Call protocol, scripts and FAQs, system and technology information, application processing, security and confidentiality, dispute and conflict resolution, listening and response skills, diversity and sensitivity training, and overall teamwork.

## Ark. Code Ann. § 25-19-101 et seq.

Developing and maintaining a register of all stakeholders either involved with the Arkansas emergency rental assistance program or impacted by program tools and processes is the first key step of our training program and protocol. IEM identifies stakeholders into broader categories, helping build the approach to and types of trainings that enhance the learning experience for each trainee. Our staff will include a designative Trainer, who is a subject matter expert on both call center operations and funding



specific to ERA. Trainees are a main focus within IEM's training protocol. This group is comprised of all program staff dedicated to the project, and will require expansive, continued training throughout the course of the project. The "Trainee" group includes every program employee operating in the program – encompassing Arkansas DHS/DCO and IEM staff, program management, outside support groups, and general administration. Subject-

matter experts and functional groups represent a second layer of training requirements, for which custom materials and training modules will focus on benefits specific to their respective functions. Examples of subject-matters include without limitation: quality control, construction, and environmental team leads. Lastly, Champions are leaders embedded with each program team and responsible for supporting their teams through mentorship – serving as an available resource for any questions that may arise. On-site compliance team members are just one example of champions that will serve as dedicated resources available to team staff as needed.



#### MODULAR AND CUSTOM-FIT TRAINING PACKAGES

Specialized training modules focusing on key program areas are developed to provide to individual teams or subject matter experts. IEM coordinates training with our call center Director/Mangers and Customer Service Representative teams so that we can also provide critical insight into program design, methodology and rules to both the general public and our civic, non-profit, and political stakeholders. These modules include without limitation:

- Customer Service and Experience Management
- Document Intake
- Program Eligibility
- External Non-Profit Programs

Enhancing applicant experience is a hallmark of IEM's program management philosophy and training program. IEM commits to extending customer experience management and empathy training to all staff members, regarding the gold standards for providing the highest level of customer service for all program participants.

Successful training curricula utilize examples, exercises, and templates specific to each program ad applicable to each program group being trained. IEM finds that trainees tend to participate more during training when they feel connected to and familiar with the material. IEM's training program seeks to fortify outputs by making a fun experience – ensuring attendance and the attentiveness and focus of each group of trainees. Additionally, simulated interactions between applicants and program staff are tools that convey the importance of positive and empathetic interactions while also highlighting the magnitude of communicating factual, current information regarding the program.

#### CONTINUING DEVELOPMENT & FOLLOW-UP WORKSHOPS

As a means of enhancing weekly ongoing operational trainings, IEM's Champion group will hold 15-minute "DOTs" – Daily Operational Trainings, held on specific weekdays- gearing focus towards refresher topics in order to reinforce previous policy and process trainings, measure the efficacy of the substantial weekly trainings mandated by the program, and ensure consistency and quality across the full program spectrum. The parameters for DOTs will be provided by the KPIs and other outcomes/performance data weekly to the Trainer on the outline of items to be covered. Champions will be responsible for conveying these trainings at each site or team location.

#### CUSTOMER SERVICE PLAN

IEM will ensure the optimal service to Arkansas ERAP applicants through our customer service plan, accounting for call center qualities, service-level agreements, KPIs, roles/responsibility criteria, quality assurance and control, qualitative and quantitative reporting. Our customer service plan will incorporate Applicant Experience Management (AEM) -- the gold standard for customer service. Our AEM will deliver good customer experience at every applicant touchpoint through their program journey.

- How can the program build organizational commitment with applicants/tenants and landlords?
- How can IEM assist Arkansas DHS/DCO in delivering outstanding applicant experiences throughout the course of the program?
- How can IEM support applicant goals and unmet needs during pandemic conditions, and how can we excite and inspire our staff to want to deliver great experiences to Arkansas DHS/DCO and IEM's shared stakeholders?
- How will we collaborate on applicant experience management strategy across program touchpoints?
- How can we measure the impact of our commitment to applicant experience management throughout the course of the program?



IEM differentiates its disciplined approach to customer service strategy by engaging applicants participating in our COVID-19 relief programs. This involves far more than serving them efficiently and effectively. It involves tapping into the emotions of applicants, making them feel connected to their housing recovery at every interaction with the program, wherever this takes place, with each and every program representative and on whatever subject or issue that may arise. In this sense, the program knows the DNA of impacted tenants and the applicant experiences the DNA of the program. In order to be in tune with the needs of customers, we ensure that the voice of the applicant is integral to our strategy, and that they are considered and discussed at every level and facet of the program. This strategy for homeowner-centric consideration is known as Applicant Experience Management (AEM).

#### IEM is committed to AEM - from Day 1 through Arkansas ERAP conclusion. This is our AEM-High Initiative.

We strive for 0 customer complaints. IEM delivered services to 52,000 applicants for Louisiana, with customer complaints at 371 calls – a complaint rate of less than 1 percent.

It is common in large organizations for the various departments and functions which touch the customer to operate in a silo, but IEM's comprehensive AEM-High strategy requires cross-functional involvement and program identity alignment at all staffing levels and all program stages. Our AEM-High protocol requires a particular skill set from our staff: team members who have a commitment to delivering great experiences for our applicant

group, going the extra mile to ensure leadership, people, cross-functional involvement, and program brand clarity, are core requirements of our AEM-High plan for the best customer service throughout the term of this contract.

#### 2.2 ENGAGEMENT OF NON-ENGLISH SPEAKING POPULATIONS

One of IEM's core values is to build collaborative relationships – with customers, with program stakeholders and most importantly with the program applicant population that is so much in need. A thorough understanding is key to fostering this effort between our staff and the applicants that we serve. When applicants do not speak English as their first language, they often rely on informal resources, such as family members or friends, to assist them in their understanding. This is not ideal since we do not have assurances that information is accurately being presented to the applicant for them to them to be able to make informed decisions.

To assure that effective communication exists between applicants and our staff, IEM utilizes a language translation line of service providers to assist those who do not speak English or who have English as a second language and have a higher comfort level communicating in their first language. This facilitates better and more thorough understanding between the applicant and our staff, and therefore, it results in better service and outcomes. IEM has standing relations with providers that provide both interpreter and translation services, with business relationships going back seven years to our Program Management Support contract for the State of New York's \$1.2 billion CDBG-DR funded NY Rising Program.

The most common foreign languages spoken in Arkansas are Spanish, German, Arabic, Chinese, and Vietnamese. The translation services provide expert communications in these and 235 other languages, as well as sign language interpretation for deaf or hearing-impaired customers. While the above mentioned languages are more common, the population of Marshallese speaking residents most prevalent in Northwest Arkansas will receive targeted outreach because their population has a much larger percentage of residents that are registered as not speaking English "very well". Our team is also mindful of cultural sensitivity and will reach out to community partners and stakeholders to ensure that the Program's outreach to the Marshallese community is impactful. We have reached out to the Marshallese Educational Initiative (MEI) to assist with a seamless introduction and entrance to the community.

Persons who speak a foreign language will be provided with a qualified foreign language interpreter through a translation line which can be utilized via phone, video, or mobile application 24/7. This amenity provides world-class linguists who are skilled at technical interpretation. The service we utilize guarantees security and confidentiality for all communications. In addition to verbal translation services, IEM will also make any written information (pamphlets, flyers, fact sheets, etc.) available in the most common foreign languages in the service area.

### 3.0 TECHNOLOGICAL CAPABILITIES

## Ark. Code Ann. § 25-19-101 et seq.

FIEM. SAFE. SECURE. RESILIENT.










### 4.0 COMMUNITY OUTREACH PLAN

IEM proposes holding a project kickoff meeting with Arkansas DHS/DCO and key stakeholders within 24 hours of contract signature to identify immediate and long-term objectives, needs, and opportunities. We will discuss program priorities and desired outcomes, along with preferred communication methods and quality expectations to ensure all stakeholders agree on program goals and outcomes. IEM offers technical assistance in navigating eligible activities specified in this new round of funding to execute the vision of strategic plans already considered by Arkansas DHS/DCO for emergency rental assistance program. With the development of another round of prospective funding already under review by the Federal government, the IEM team will also lend support to Arkansas's development, public outreach and administration of a comprehensive plan for future initiatives and funding in full compliance with all program and federal requirements.

**Immediate, Sustainable Capacity with Non-Profit Coordination:** IEM affords immediate capacity to begin and sustain operations, as well as provide technical knowledge for the design and implementation of public benefit programs and activities that prevent future displacement of Arkansas residents suffering a loss of income as a result of COVID-19. IEM will conduct outreach to local non-profits, tenant counseling and social services organizations, and other safety net and volunteer organizations within the state. The IEM team understands the multiple layers of ongoing non-profit assistance already being provided in affected locations – including state-wide health, financial, and food security initiatives – that may impact the ability to provide additional resources to the communities being served. In light of this, IEM will work in coordination with these organizations and community groups to build partnerships that leverage existing and ongoing participation with in-kind programs and initiatives without affecting those organization's own bandwidth or capacity. This will not only help generate positive support for the program, but also increase the speed and efficiency with which the program can identify and reach eligible residents.

We fully understand the need to identify applicants and qualify them for program benefits quickly; imminent eviction is as time sensitive as it gets. IEM will begin work upon notice of award, prior to contract execution, to ensure that the tenants can breathe a little easier knowing that their rental assistance will be delivered timely. With two different target stakeholders, tenants and their landlords, this program will need to be tackled on both fronts simultaneously. Our operational model allows for us to manage both lanes seamlessly.

**Strategic Prioritization and Community Outreach:** The pandemic's economic and health impacts are exacerbating the nation's affordable housing and homelessness crises—adding more low-income renters to the millions already experiencing housing instability and at risk of eviction and homelessness. As states and localities allocate emergency rental assistance funds to help renters avoid losing their homes, local leaders must decide where to prioritize their resources.

To help inform those decisions, IEM will assist Arkansas DHS/DCO by developing a community-based process to target areas where resources for residents are likely to have the greatest impact on reducing housing instability and homelessness. Within the basic eligibility requirements outlined by the Federal government for states, counties, and localities participating in direct funding to households seeking emergency rental assistance, the funding bill identifies three tiers of prospective applicants as priorities for assistance:

- 1. Households with incomes less than 50% of the Area Median Income (AMI)
- 2. Households with one or more unemployed individuals as of the date of application and not employed for the 90 days prior to application, and
- 3. Any additional priority criteria established by the Program.

IEM commits to executing this public outreach approach to ensure that program funds reach Arkansas's most impacted and vulnerable residents. In doing so, program funds will be spent in accordance with all Federal statutes and regulations and in conjunction with the state's Emergency Action and Citizen Participation plans. Comprehensive public outreach and program education helps to ensure that households meeting priorities for assistance are notified, identified, and assisted.

**Regular Meetings and Reporting:** IEM proposes regular meetings facilitated by our Project Manager in coordination with Arkansas DHS/DCO staff and stakeholders to discuss program progress, lessons learned, and additional recommendations to address short and long-term community needs. Additionally, progress reports will be provided to Arkansas DHS/DCO staff to measure overall public outreach against established goals.

IEM's comprehensive Outreach strategy is intended to saturate traditional and non-traditional media markets within the first weeks of program execution, with the intended goal of ushering all program applicants into the intake phase within the first weeks of program launch.

**Table 2: Outreach Strategies and Tactics** 

# Ark. Code Ann. § 25-19-101 et seq.



# Ark. Code Ann. § 25-19-101 et seq.

# Ark. Code Ann. § 25-19-101 et seq.

**Program Information Website:** The success of Arkansas's Emergency Rental Assistance Program will rely on the ability to clearly articulate program information and updates, provide high quality support and service to potential applicants, and demonstrate progress and action. The website will be designed to complement these success factors and will serve as a primary platform for program outreach and education. It will enable visitors to easily locate and navigate program information, which will include digestible content and user-friendly features, such as FAQs and instructional infographics. Support features, including live chat assistance and a service center locator, can be incorporated to enhance potential applicant experience. The website may also include designated areas for dynamic content, such as a "What's New" section and social media feeds to provide frequent program updates and fresh, current information. A lean and advanced web presence will anticipate high-potential levels of traffic, ensuring a seamless and fast website experience that will prevent or minimize possible frustrations on behalf of applicants and other stakeholders for Program launch. High quality website performance will help build the reputation of the Program and invite in a larger audience.

**Interview and Meeting Availability:** Our Team is committed to helping Arkansas DHS/DCO communicate program updates and status with public officials, Arkansas residents and all other community stakeholders. The IEM Team understands that although we will always identify ourselves as contractors, in many eyes our team will function as an extension of Arkansas DHS/DCO's staff. Our performance, professionalism, and availability reflect upon the State, and a teaming approach with excellent communication is necessary for the program's success.

### 5.0 PAYMENT PROCESSING AND DISTRIBUTION

#### **Experience with Third-Party Payee Assistance**

IEM works with our government clients to provide flexible solutions for grant funding disbursement. IEM can service any grantee that requires ERAP support services that include the establishment of a vendor-provided bank account. IEM has established accounts for grant funding and disbursement for multi-billion-dollar grant allocations where funding was distributed to program applicants, program vendors and contractors. Additionally, we have maintained applicant funding accounts for projects where applicants are required to contribute their own dollars prior to the program delivering any benefits.

IEM applies tight financial controls, including an absolute segregation of duties, and multiple verification steps prior to any disbursements, as well as monthly, quarterly and yearly reconciliations on the account. IEM's Corporate Controller and Finance Team are the custodians of the accounts. We have operated these accounts in different ways depending upon client preference—funding the account completely with IEM funds, making approved payments on behalf of our client, and then obtaining reimbursement for the eligible, documented expenses; or, our client advance funds the account as a pass through for funding requests submitted to the client's finance and accounting department. In either case, we open non-interest-bearing accounts with the following protocols:

- Accounts controlled by the Controller and Director of Operations with signature authority for checks
- Monitored by Financial Management Team
- Separate accounts for separate purposes
- Use of Safe Repo, sweeps, invested in overnight Repurchase Agreements of investment grade back securities paying 0% interest to the accounts. This "Safe Repo" product is used for clients that need to protect their deposit balances over the FDIC insured coverage, but do not want or cannot earn interest on the funds (such is the case with federal grant funds).
- Seek banks that use the Trusteer Rapport security software
- Use of security tokens issued by bank to access accounts via banking website
- Positive Pay to help identify and prevent fraudulent, altered, and counterfeit checks
- ACH Block to ensure only checks are issued on behalf of the program and prevent a fraudster form using the routing and account numbers visible on physical checks to make purchases or send money via the ACH process. If paper checks are preferred, all checks are locked in a safe accessible only with two keys, both of which must be present in order to access the check stock.
- Should ACH be preferred, IEM uses ACH Positive Pay where, like the paper check detail uploads, ACH
  positive pay files are uploaded for ACH payments, including the payee name, amount of payment and
  banking information. These transactions can be reviewed and released by a second person to ensure
  proper payment.

IEM has conducted these activities most recently in Louisiana for housing recovery operations resulting from the 2016 floods. IEM established two accounts on behalf of the client. One Account was for CDBG-DR grant disbursement, the second to hold required applicant escrow offsetting DOB. IEM disbursed or received funds with these accounts from April 2017 through April 2020.

Over \$500M in CDBG funds flowed through the CDBG Checking Account and all funds were disbursed within the time allowed by HUD for disbursement to homeowners (72 hours). The second account was for Stafford Act

Duplication of Benefit funds from program applicants. Approximately \$4M in homeowner funds were deposited and disbursed during the April 2017 to April 2020 timeframe. Homeowner contributed funds had to be spent down prior to any grant dollars being spent on the same project.

IEM is also engaged in Temporary Housing Assistance qualification and disbursement for both Louisiana and Texas. To date, IEM has issued payments to hotels and landlords in the amount of \$3,258,607 on each of these programs (\$2,300,688.04 on the Restore Louisiana program and \$957,918.61 on the Texas General Land Office program respectively).

IEM's Accounting System, Deltek Costpoint, in conjunction with a Bank of America bank account, can handle numerous types of payments needed. We can issue paper checks as well as ACH/EFT directly to landlord accounts. Our account setup can also handle wire transfers that may need to occur to banking institutions for mortgage payments for homeowners in eviction status.

IEM has additional partnering experience for payment processing with Hancock Whitney Bank and Truist (a recent merger of BB&T and SunTrust).



### 6.0 DATA MANAGEMENT AND SECURITY

#### 6.1 ELIGIBILITY, VERIFICATION, AND FRAUD DETERRENCE

**Eligibility and Award Calculation Reviews:** Updated federal guidance stipulates a new set of thresholds and conditions to be eligible for emergency rental assistance. The following table identifies these regulatory requirements and the methods employed by the IEM team to document compliance within the system of record:

**Table 3: Eligible Households** 

Eligible Households (as defined in Federal Guidance) Applicants may submit proof of unemployment benefits first received on or after One or more household March 13, 2020. members must be qualified Additionally, applicants may provide income documentation prior to and after the start for unemployment benefits of the pandemic, a self-certification of financial hardship, or any other financial or have directly or indirectly documentation to be evaluated by the Program. experienced loss of income, significant costs, or other financial hardship resulting from the pandemic. One or more household Applicants may provide past due utility bills, rent notices, or eviction notices. members are at risk for Applicants may also provide any other evidence of such risk to be evaluated by the Program. experiencing homelessness or housing instability. Applicants must provide documentation to allow the program to calculate their total Household income may not annual income for 2020 or monthly income at time of application in compliance with exceed 80% of the Area the annual income definition provided by HUD in 24 CFR 5.609 and using adjusted Median Income based on gross income as defined for purposes of reporting under IRS Form 1040 Series for total income for 2020 or individual Federal annual income tax purposes. demonstrated monthly For determining annual income, applicants will provide policy-approved source income at the time of documentation evidencing annual income (e.g. wage statement, interest statement, program application. unemployment compensation statement) or a copy of Form 1040 as filed with the IRS. For monthly income, applicants may provide income source documentation for the two months prior to the submission of the program application for assistance. Income documentation must be provided for all household members over the age of 18.

In addition to these requirements, IEM will document eligibility for each of the following thresholds, or as otherwise prescribed by Arkansas DHS/DCO's program policy, in the second se

✓ Property Ownership of Landlord: IEM will verify property ownership of each tenant's landlord through a review of the 2020 Property Tax Records. If the program team is unable to verify ownership through the tax rolls, landlords may also provide one of the following to verify ownership: warrant deed, fee simple title, life estate or trust documents, proof of mortgage, or act of donation.

✓ **Rent/Utility Calculations:** IEM will collect and validate documentation regarding the amount of rent – in arrears and current – to complete the program award calculation and document the electronic file. Federal guidance stipulates that assistance is capped at 12 months, plus an additional three months, if necessary, to secure housing stability.

✓ Utility Calculations: IEM will collect and validate documentation regarding the amount of utility and home energy costs – in arrears and current – to document the program's award calculation and document the electronic file. US Department of Treasury guidance, issued on January 19, 2020, define "utilities and home energy costs" as separately stated charges related to the occupancy of rental property. Accordingly, utilities include separately stated electricity, gas, water and sewer, trash removal and energy costs, such as fuel oil. Telecommunication services (telephone, cable, Internet) delivered to the rental dwelling are not considered to be utilities and will not be eligible for program awards. Utilities that are covered by the landlord within rent will be treated as rent.

✓ Documentation of Prior Rental Assistance Funding: Pursuant to section 501(k)(3)(B) of Subdivision N of the Act and 2 CFR 200.403, when providing ERA assistance, the grantee must review the household's income and sources of assistance to confirm that the ERA assistance does not duplicate any other assistance, including federal, state, and local assistance provided for the same costs. IEM will verify and document any prior duplicative assistance to complete the program award calculation.

## ✓ Any other program eligibility requirements stipulated by Arkansas DHS/DCO in the program's policy guidelines.

Upon submission of all required documentation, the IEM team commits to providing enrolled households with an eligibility decision and calculation of grant amounts for final approval by Arkansas DHS/DCO within one to three business days. Case Managers will document eligibility and award calculations using automated checklists within that document the times and statuses of each review decision supporting audit-compliant level verification of benefits. All program eligibility checklists and award calculations undergo a rigorous quality control process implemented by IEM QC staff members that will be documented in throughout each program phase.

As outlined by federal guidance for this new funding, agencies will make payments to landlords or utility providers on behalf of eligible households; if a landlord or utility provider is unwilling to participate, the agency may provide funding directly to eligible households. IEM will make every reasonable effort to obtain the cooperation of landlords and utility providers to accept payments from the ERA program. To document compliance of these efforts, IEM will make at least three attempts by phone, email, or in writing – by certified mail, to request landlord or utility provider participation. All efforts will be documented in the landlord or utility provider do not respond to the request within 21 calendar days, the program will move forward with issuing rental assistance funding directly to eligible households.

#### **Experience with Verifying Household Income**

Income level, in conjunction with other applicant or property attributes, will allow an applicant to qualify for a tier of the Emergency Rental Assistance Program as related to priority of populations served and funding available. IEM verifies and documents applicant income per program rules to document LMI and other National Objective requirements, determine the level of funding for which an applicant may qualify, and for reporting purposes.

IEM uses the Adjusted Gross Income (AGI) method based on the using Internal Revenue Service 1040 to verify and document applicant income. We do stand ready, however, to utilize whatever income tax verification method is chosen by the State, to include self-attestation.

Oftentimes, a challenge in grant programs is income verification. It can be a lengthy process, particularly when applicants don't have access to their income documentation at the time of application. To solve this problem, IEM has contracted with Veri-Tax®, the first company to deliver Internal Revenue Service tax transcripts electronically, to retrieve electronic tax transcripts directly from the Internal Revenue Service (using the 4506-T method), allowing the quick validation of income.

For applicants that have filed tax returns, Veri-Tax® would expedite receipt of 4506-T Internal Revenue Service transcripts. The turnaround time using Veri-Tax is 72 hours for the return of an electronic copy of the tax return transcript. Compared with a standard average of 10 days when grant program eligibility specialists must request them directly from the Internal Revenue Service via paper form and receive a paper copy of the transcript in return, IEM's Veri-Tax solution will greatly increases production rates and decreases overall program cost.

# Ark. Code Ann. § 25-19-101 et seq.

IEM provides scripts to our or other selected offeror's Call Center team so they can assist and guide program applicants through the collection of proper documentation. Case Managers will use the information to complete an income calculation workbook – allowing Call Center representatives to focus on building valuable applicant experiences and promoting more files forward in the program workflow. All reviews performed by case managers will be subject to a one-over-one review at the QC stage and prior to Closing to ensure audit-compliant accuracy and file completion. IEM will use our application to automate the income verification workflow.

The IEM Case Managers will use a proven and tested Income Calculator workbook, internal to the automated workflow, to document and verify income sources and calculations. This workbook uses HUD 2021 published Income Limits to accurately calculate income and AMI level accordingly. One key factor is the utilization of one consistent income verification method for the duration of the Emergency Rental Assistance or other programs, something our team can offer from Day 1.

According to the IRS Form 1040 Definition (AGI Calculation Method), the following are examples of income inclusions that we do and should use in our calculations:

- Wages, salaries, tips, etc.
- Taxable interest.
- Dividends.
- Taxable refunds, credits or offsets of State and local income taxes. There are some exceptions -refer to Form 1040 instructions.
- Alimony (or separate maintenance payments) received.
- Business income (or loss).
- Capital gain (or loss).

Deductions Allowed include but are not limited to:

- IRA deduction
- Health savings account deduction
- Moving expenses (for military personnel on orders only)
- Self-employed health insurance deduction
- Alimony paid
- Student loan interest deduction
- Educator Expenses (for k-12 only

In instances where household members have not filed income taxes and indicate that they cannot provide income documentation, self-attestation may be an option, if program policy allows. Self-attestation – the written statement that outlines all sources of available income for the applicable adult household member and is supported by paycheck stubs and benefit statements - allows the program to impute the taxable adjusted gross income of the household member, consistent with the 1040 method.

Once all the income information is entered into the Income Calculator appropriately, the workbook logic examines the total household income, applies any Social Security Income taxes, and deducts any deductions not accounted for in tax returns (i.e. wage workers who did not file). The resulting adjusted income is what is used to calculate LMI, and the applicant's AMI. Once the Income Workbook is complete, the Case Manager work will receive one over one review in the QC step in the applicant and the applicant workflow.

#### **Experience with Detecting Fraudulent or Incorrect Data**

Our team consist of trained and experienced professionals in the design of internal controls to mitigate and manage risk of fraud and errors. Many staff are Certified Fraud Examiners, Certified Internal Auditors, Certified Information System Auditors, Certified Public Accountants and Data Scientists. The leader of IEM's Disaster Recovery Practice, Mr. Jon Mabry, is a seasoned professional auditor who was part of team that detected the largest corporate fraud in history (e.g. WorldCom fraud).

Mr. Mabry was later appointed by Mississippi Governor Haley Barbour to manage its \$5.4 billion CDBG DR Grants Program where he implemented preventive and detective controls that resulted in an error of less than 1/10th of 1% on the entire \$5.4 billion allocation. All of this say that any internal control environment is based on tone at the top. We ensure that each of our deliveries implement internal controls that are designed to detect and prevent fraud and/or errors. Our internal control design is based on the COSO Framework. We continually assess and reassess the effectiveness of the design of controls using automated and non-automated testing procedures including data analytics.

This proven approach has resulted in preventing errors and fraud in over \$74 billion of CDBG DR grant program funds that IEM has managed. To date, the HUD Inspector General has not identified any audit findings that require any states or municipalities to pay back misspent funding resulting from fraud, errors, or omissions.



Figure 8: Internal Controls

#### **Experience with Implementing DOB Controls**

Per Federal law, the Robert T. Stafford Act (Stafford Act), any person, business, or other entity is prohibited from receiving Federal funds for any part of such loss as to which (s)he has already received financial assistance under

any other program, private insurance, charitable assistance, or any other source. As such, best practice dictates that Duplication of Benefits (DOB) and Verification of Benefits (VOB) status should be managed throughout the life of the application and tested again prior to application closeout to account for latent funds received that might be a source of duplication.

Since 2005, IEM staff members have defined Stafford Act-compliant practices for the review and verification of applicant documentation for single family and multifamily housing across the country, including Mississippi, Texas, New York City, New York State, Louisiana, North Carolina, Puerto Rico and Richland County, South Carolina. With each new disaster and each new grantee, there have been changes in HUD guidance on DOB. Our institutional knowledge has followed changes in HUD rules and crosscutting federal guidance, particularly the tightening of Stafford Act DOB requirements, increased reporting and accountability tracking, and stronger closeout requirements.

The DOB process begins as soon as a landlord or tenant applies and submits the necessary authorizations to conduct third-party reviews. Having a designated DOB/VOB team will allow the process to begin early and be completed quickly. The system also features QC-audit functionality, allowing the DOB/VOB team to indicate the times and results of one-over-one peer reviews. The IEM team will utilize a first-in, first-out approach to eligibility and verification processing, with deference given to establish eligible policy-based or State-requested prioritization of applications.

IEM has set industry records for the accuracy of DOB analyses, verification of benefits, benefit determination, and award calculation for disaster recovery housing programs. Our experts have gained this experience through hands-on work with HUD, grantees, and applicants. Our highly experienced and trained staff will be able to review each applicant file for the Emergency Rental Assistance and other Programs, seamlessly and with the assurance that previously received benefits will not duplicated.

As a lesson learned from prior recovery grant programs, IEM will work with the State to ensure third party data sources are secured and directly verified to identify ancillary payments. Typical sources in housing assistance programs include but are not limited to property and hazard insurance payments, FEMA National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP), Small Business, Administration loans, and FEMA Individual (household) Assistance Payments related to the Structure. At this time the Emergency Rental Assistance guidance from US Treasury Department is not as heavy on benefit duplication sources. This could change with time and IEM will adapt with the changes to ensure Arkansas has fully compliant applicant files for a fully compliant program.

Our highly experienced specialists will review each applicant file to ensure that previously received benefits are not duplicated. In addition to documentation provided by the applicant, we will verify those benefits through data streams secured with Federal Agencies directly, as applicable. We will enter all documentation and record accurate totals, as well as breakdown, of duplicative assistance into **enter all documentation**. During the award calculation process, our staff members deduct any duplicative assistance from the total eligible grant award to ensure that no duplication occurs with program funding.

IEM will work with applicants to explain what duplication of benefits are, how they occur, discuss any DOB gaps in funding (funding shortfalls) and the resulting responsibility that may lie with the landlord or tenant. t is only after the DOB is received by the program that the applicant may proceed with obtaining assistance.

IEM will properly account for duplication of benefit payments and provide monthly reconciliation reports, as well as System of Record draw down accounting for use of duplicative assistance. We are experienced in accounting for these funds and ensuring that they are used first towards an applicant's project before any grant dollars are accessed. All duplication of benefit documentation and determination worksheets will be incorporated into each applicant's file within the second determination. This process also facilitates the State notifying other agencies regarding the potential benefits an applicant may receive from the Emergency Rental Assistance Program. This communication is

critical to the State's ability to avoid costly circle backs and shift the burden of updates regarding duplicative benefits away from the State and to the applicant (through subrogation) and the other agencies.

#### 6.2 DATA PRIVACY AND SECURITY

#### WAS BUILT FROM THE GROUND UP WITH PRIVACY COMPLIANCE IN MIND.

offers a secure, compliant system (e.g., HIPAA, FedRAMP) that is web/mobile accessible, 508 compliant, and meets data privacy and security requirements for protecting Personally Identifiable Information (PII) as required in section 501(g)(4) of Division N of the Act. All applicable data will be completed, handled, and administered to comply with the Privacy Act and all Federal and State requirements associated with handling potentially sensitive information inclusive of Personally Identifiable Information (PII).

#### Experience with Client Personal Information and Financial Documentation Security

IEM applies strict Personal Identifiable Information (PII) controls in every grants management program that we work. Security for applicant PII starts with people. We train all onboarding staff to a project in the requirement to protect PII and financial documents and to immediately report any potential exposure of information to the IEM project manager. Training is conducted through the direct Supervisors and we conduct periodic refresher training to ensure protection of sensitive information is at the forefront when conducting application workflow activities. We train staff to also report immediately to the client grantee with enough detail that a risk judgement can be made. If the grantee has a required statement that each staff member must sign, IEM ensures completion of any required signatures before any project employee touches applicant data or documents. IEM has employee non-disclosure and protection forms available to execute and archive in the absence of State forms.

The second major consideration associated with security of PII and documents is use of automation. Starting with the computers that staff work with, we train our personnel to work with information only in the web based application. If applicant PII or a document ends up temporarily on the laptop, staff is trained to delete the material at the close of transaction. Emailed documents are handled via a dedicated email domain for the IEM project staff that IEM configures in Microsoft Office Exchange 365. This cloud email environment is fully secured, and all emails are encrypted. All emails are archived for the project so that any user inbox is auditable. When a staff member leaves the project, the Supervisor ensures the laptop and associated peripherals are turned in. The IEM IT staff then wipes the computer to ensure that no Program related data persists. The IEM IT staff also archives the departing individual's email inbox.

With respect to applicant use of mobile devices and potential for persistence of PII or document information on the devices, prevents this risk. The way mobile access to the application works is that once the applicant submits information or a photo to the web portal, the information is deleted automatically from the device. This ensures there is no persistence of sensitive information outside the cloud environment for

With respect to the cloud environment, the Appian BPM platform on which our applications run if fully FedRAMP, FISMA, SOC3, and HIPAA compliant, with current certifications or accreditations for all, and using the latest encryption technology. This is a claim most other offerors cannot make. IEM's solution is therefore low risk for any kind of systems breach that could lead to unauthorized data export.

#### 6.3 RECOVERY POINT OBJECTIVE (RPO) AND RECOVERY TIME OBJECTIVE (RTO)

An Appian Cloud HA instance offers a Recovery Point Objective of 1 minute and a Recovery Time Objective of 15 minutes. This means that in the event of a system failure, your Appian instance will be restored and available to your users in less than 15 minutes, having lost no more than the last-minute worth of data.

### 7.0 AUDIT/RECORD RETENTION

As mentioned above, a statistic structure is built on HRIQ, which has been used to process hundreds of millions of dollars of grants in New Jersey, Florida, North Carolina, and Texas, by tens of thousands of program registrants and staff, resulting in thousands of disaster-affected households returning to rehabilitated homes. HRIQ's strong BPMN-based workflow support provides coordination across hundreds of end users organized into ten functional sub-teams to orchestrate a complex and interdependent series of tasks.

This routinely requires data and system integrations with external systems and datasets, including:

- Platforms such as Azure, Microsoft , Salesforce, Microsoft Dynamics, or others
- Data Sets such as HUD Income Tables to calculate LMI or AMI, SBA loan information to determine Duplication of Benefits, or backfill of legacy data
- Cloud Services such as Power BI, maps to provide mapping and geolocation capabilities, access to language translation, image recognition, document extraction, or Natural Language Processing (NLP).

The Appian Marketplace provides a rich ecosystem of off-the-shelf plug-ins which make common integrations including DocuSign, Adobe Sign electronic signatures quick and easy. DocuSign eSignature complies with the U.S. ESIGN Act and UETA, as well as the EU eIDAS Regulation. A robust audit trail is automatically generated and stored within every agreement, and a record of the signature is also stored within the system's structured data for easy reporting. Through integration with Google Translate, it is a simple matter to internationalize system language into multiple language translations.

In the energing innovative technologies including a leading "Commercial Off-the-Shelf" or COTS Platform-as-a-Service, cloud services, and Robotic Process Automation (RPA) to solve real-world problems in the emergency response and recovery domains, including COVID emergency assistance. Using an Agile methodology and product-centric development, IEM has applied industry best practices to execute rapid, iterative deliveries that meet customers' requirements. The measured in hours or days, and meet security and auditability requirements to satisfy a federal or state-level audit. IEM's long history with agile development techniques gave us confidence that we had the right processes in place to support such a dynamic project.

After an extensive evaluation of available COTS platforms, we built our system on top of Appian, a Platform-as-a-Service that provides reliable hosting, robust low-code capabilities and a powerful security architecture and is FEDRAMP, SOC3 and HIPAA certified. The security architecture and is has extensive support for mobile, and even offline, access and is flexible enough to handle program updates within hours or minutes with no interruption in server availability. The native mobility of the Appian platform on which the HRIQ application runs allows users to work anywhere, on any device. IEM is currently an Appian Business Partner.

As part of our services, our team will conduct consistent compliance monitoring. Through platform reporting and data metrics, IEM will be able to track applicant communications, application processing, grant award eligibility and track payments. IEM will provide the requisite level of oversight for each application. We will monitor projects for quality, budget, schedule, and compliance of all Arkansas DHS/DCO and federal Program requirements. IEM has a demonstrated success record of developing impactful teams for grant management and administrative services initiatives similar to Arkansas DHS/DCO's Emergency Rental Assistance Program and other relief programs throughout the nation. Having delivered services for programs totaling more

than \$74 Billion and benefiting more than 250,000 households, with a record of doing it faster than any other firm in the nation, IEM welcomes the opportunity to support Arkansas applicants in the most urgent need of COVID-19 relief assistance. IEM offers the Arkansas DHS/DCO a commitment to sound case and funding disbursement management and oversight protocols to ensure upmost compliance with Program requirements.

IEM will provide the Arkansas DHS/DCO with weekly and monthly reports that outline accomplishments achieved since the last reporting period, accomplishments to date, and projected accomplishments for the next reporting period. We will use benchmark and milestone-based reporting techniques to communicate metrics, illustrate progress, and promote Arkansas DHS/DCO's program success. Through these reports, IEM will ensure compliance. If data indicates insufficient success rates, IEM will use this data to make process adjustments and enhance efforts for these funds accordingly.

### 8.0 IMPLEMENTATION PLAN

IEM has a demonstrated success record of developing impactful teams for grant management and administrative services initiatives similar to Arkansas DHS/DCO's Emergency Rental Assistance Program throughout the nation. Having delivered services for programs totaling more than \$10 Billion and benefiting more than 100,000 households, with a record of doing it faster than any other firm in the nation, IEM welcomes the opportunity to support Arkansas applicants in the most urgent need of emergency rental assistance.

**IEM is committed to starting the Arkansas DHS/DCO Emergency Rental Assistance Program starting Day 1** – with full operations underway within 7 days of contract signature. And this speed is a promise IEM will deliver, supported by our team's operational startup of other programs within the same timeframe – including our CDBG-DR Housing deliveries in Florida and North Carolina.

IEM's delivery is schedule-driven, outcome-focused, and puts Arkansas residents first. This value system that fuels and inspires us to do more for our clients and deliver quality at each step of the programs we run. The unwavering commitment to these values at all levels empowers our team to deliver tailored, innovative, and effective solutions that assist communities in these uncertain times.

#### 8.1 PROGRAM INITIATION AND PLANNING

IEM proposes holding a project kickoff meeting with Arkansas DHS/DCO and key stakeholders within 24 hours of contract signature to identify immediate and long-term objectives, needs, and opportunities. We will discuss program priorities and desired outcomes, along with preferred communication methods and quality expectations to ensure all stakeholders agree on program goals and outcomes. IEM offers technical assistance in navigating eligible activities specified in this new round of funding to execute the vision of strategic plans already considered by the state. With the development of another round of prospective funding already under review by the Federal government, the IEM team will also lend support to the county and city's development and administration of a comprehensive plan for future initiatives and funding in full compliance with all program and federal requirements.

**Immediate, Sustainable Capacity with Non-Profit Coordination:** IEM affords immediate capacity to begin and sustain operations, as well as provide technical knowledge for the design and implementation of public benefit programs and activities that prevent future displacement of Arkansas residents suffering a loss of income as a result of the COVID-19. IEM will conduct outreach to local non-profits, tenant counseling and social services organizations, and other safety net and volunteer organizations throughout the state. The IEM team understands the multiple layers of ongoing non-profit assistance already being provided in affected locations – including local and state-wide health, financial, and food security initiatives – that may impact the ability to provide additional resources to the communities being served. In light of this, IEM will work in coordination with these organizations and community groups to build partnerships that leverage existing and ongoing participation with in-kind programs and initiatives without affecting those organization's own bandwidth or capacity. This will not only help generate positive support for the program, but also increase the speed and efficiency with which the program can identify and reach eligible residents.

We fully understand the need to identify applicants and qualify them for program benefits quickly; imminent eviction is as time sensitive as it gets. IEM will begin work upon notice of award, prior to contract execution, to ensure that the tenants can breathe a little easier knowing that their rental assistance will be delivered timely. With two different target stakeholders, tenants and their landlords, this program will need to be tackled on both fronts simultaneously. Our operational model allows for us to manage both lanes seamlessly.

**8.2 IMPLEMENTATION TIMELINE** 

# Ark. Code Ann. § 25-19-101 et seq.







P.O. Box 110265 • Research Triangle Park, NC 27709 • (919) 990-8191 or (800) 977-8191 • www.iem.com